
St. louis

A regular meeting of the St. Louis Planning Commission was called to order by Manager Giles at 5:30
P.M. Due tothe absence ofthe Chairman and Vice-Chairman, a motion by Messer, supported byPalmer
to appoint City Manager Giles to chair the meeting. All ayes. Motion Carried.

Present:
Excused:

Giles, S. Kelly, Messer, Echtinaw Palmer, Whitford
Doepker, D. Kelley, Horvat

Also Present: Josh Leppien - lntern

Manager Giles led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Motion by Messer, supported by Whitford, to approve the minutes from the October 9, 2024, meeting.
All ayes. Motion Carried. Mayor Echtinaw commented that Recording Secretary Dori Foster did an

excellent job in preparing those minutes.

New Business:

a. Church of God - 520 Olive Street Discussion

Manager Giles mentioned that there had been a number of inquiries over the past few months
from interested parties concerning the re-use ofthe vacant church at 520 Olive. These inquiries
led him and Josh Leppien to review the current Zoning Ordinance with reBards to allowable re-
uses for vacant religious facilities. The current ordinance provides in Article 17, "Special Land

Use Requirements", some direction on the re-use of school facilities but is silent with regards to
re-use of religious facilities, Discussion amongst Commission members indicated that the City
has had more religious facilities relocated, leaving their facilities vacant. There was a consensus
as to a need to consider the re-use potential for these facilities within various zoning districts.

Josh Leppien had drafted suggested language, adapted from the current Article 17.3, at Manager
Giles distributed it to the members. Commission members discussed potential business use

impacts on the existing properties and the use of the special land use section of the ordinance.
Commissioner Messer asked for examples of the types of businesses which could be allowed as

there was a concern that some may not be compatible. Messer also asked if the Administration
could look into other communities' ordinances to see how they have addressed re-use of vacant
religious facilities.

Manager Giles agreed to have staff look at the ordinances for surrounding communities and

bring this information back to the Planning Commission for review and discussion. The goal of
this effort is to amend our current zoning ordinance to provide guidelines for the re-use of
religious facilities within the City of St. Louis, thereby creating a positive impact on the existing
neighborhoods where they are located.



Additional discussion:

Manager Giles mentioned that the City will be looking to review and update the current Zoning
Ordinance in the future, utilizing the consultant working on the overall County Master Plan. This
will occur once the County Master Plan has been completed.

There was no other business to report.

There were no public comments.

Motion by Echtinaw, supported by S. Kelly to adjourn at 6:05 P.M. All ayes. Motion carried.

Keith W. Risdon

Acting Recording Secretary



Wed nesday October 9, 2024
St. Louis, Ml

A regutar meeting of the St. Louis Ptanning Commission was calted to order by Chairman Dan
Doepker at 5:30 P.M.

Present: Doepker, Gites, D. Kettey, S. Ketty, Messer, Echtinaw, Palmer, Whitford
Absent: Horvat
Atso Present: Jake Gregory-Hope House, Chief Richard Ramereiz-SLPD, Gratiot County Prosecuting
Attorney-Laura Bever.
Others in Attendance:
Jim Ketly, Lyte Mccoon, Nathan Workman, Kelty Braman, Stephanie & Frank Davis, Paut & Sandy
Capen, Dan Mandy, Bilt Leonard, Buffy Btock, Tim Btock, Louise St. John, T.J. Sirrine, Amber
Derosia, Sydney & Brenden Zuke, Carotyn Studtey, Sarah Bouman, Cass Thelen, Lori Teat, Rebecah
Most, Rachet Smith and Farris Azzam.

The Ptedge of Attegiance was ted by Chairman Doepker.

Motion was made by D, Kettey, supported by S. Ketty to approve the minutes from June 12,2024. All
ayes. Motion carried.

Kurt Giles advised the Ptanning Commission that it was time to review the Speciat Use Permit
extension renewal for the Gratiot County Hope House. This is to be done every 3 years.

Chairman Doepker opened the pubtic hearing Et 5:34 P,M.

Jake Gregory from Hope House advisod the Ptanning Commission that this was their third renewat,
and they are very gratefut for the support from the community, members, and area agencies that
support their mission. Hope House has had good success over the past few years, from hetping
famities to singte individuats, of att ages. There are many tocat agencies that Hope House has
assistance with, a few to mention are 8 Cap, Gratiot lntegrated Heatth, My Michigan Heatth, and the
Gratiot County Prosecutor's office. Jake stated they also do fundraisers, and other organizations
donate as we[1.

Ratph Echtinaw asked where the funding comes from for the Hope House. Jake advised that
tunding comes from 8-Cap, MDHHS, Michigan State Housing Authority and HUD.

Amber Derosia asked what the Hope House would do if the permit was denied? Jake advised that
they do not have an alternate ptace to go at this time.

Buffy Btock (whose backyard is adjacent to the Hope House property) advised that they hear lots of
cussing and fighting from the Hope House. They feet that Jake Gregory is ignoring them when they
attempt to tatk to him. Buffy stated they had gone to his house, but no one had answered the door.
Chief Ramereiz asked why they do not catl or go to the Hope House when they have an issue and
not Jake's personaI residence. Buffy advised that she had catted once but received no feedback.
Butty has twetve kids under her controt during the day. She stated they cannot go to the park
anymore; drugs are being hidden there and are being found on the ground. Chief Ramereiz asked
Buffy what kind of drugs had been found at the park and what they did with them once found. Buffy



stated it appeared to be marijuana and that she had put it in the trash. Chief Ramereiz asked why
not calt 91 1 and have the potice take care of it? Buffy stated she was there with her daycare kids,
and this was just the easiest way to dispose of it, thinking that no one woutd take it out of the trash.
Buffy advised this is not safe for them or anyone to be around.

Tim Btock who works at MDOC and whose property abuts the shelter property asked how many
houses have been broken into since Hope House has been here? Chief Ramereiz read off the
description of calts to the Hope House and surrounding areas and stated he was not aware of any
home invasions of that nature. Tim ask6d Jake if there was drug use inside ot the Hope House. Jake
stated there was not. Tim asked why they do not administer drug tests. Jake advised that they are
not permitted to per the State. Tim asked if the pavition at the park must be reserved to be abte to
use it, Chief Ramereiz advised that it does not need to be reserved alt the time to be used. Peopte
do catl and reserve it for parties/functions. Tim asked how oftEn the potice patrot the area by the
park. Chief Ramereiz stated he has one officer on duty at a time and they are instructed to patrot 2-
3 times in the a.m. and p.m. Tim asked about the drugs being found at the park and what can be
done about that. Tim asked, "don't we have a drug dog that can go patrol there. Prosecuting
Attorney Laura Bever advised that Gratiot County Sheriff's Office has one dog and Tribat Potice do
as wett. Tim asked why they coutdn't be used to do sweeps of the park and the Hope House
grounds. Prosecuting Bever stated that she had sent an emaiI to the Gratiot county officer with the
K-9 and asked that he have the dog check the area frequsntty. Tim asked Jake if any of the Hope
House staff had found drugs on the residents. Jake asked one ofthe emptoyees named Rachael
and she stated none of which she was aware. Rachaet advised that presence is prevention, and it
has been working wet[.

Paut Capen, a 1s-year resident of Westgate subdivision, stat€d they have loved watching the park.
Attthe kids ptaying and famities enjoying their time there. Sincethe Hope House has been there,
they have witnessed cars being parked overnight, same vehicte being parked there for 5 days,
peopte steeping on the picnic tabtes and in the bushes, toud tanguage, profanity, sexuat acts being
performed in ptain site and behind trees (have proof on phone), families arguing with young
chitdren. Paut advised there are no chitdren coming to the park anymore, people are not
comfortable going there. Paut stated there has been at least six times that random peopte have
been in their yard. Pau[ advised one day a tady asked if she could put up a tent in his yard. Paut

advised that they had to instalt security cameras at their house because of this. Paut advised that
they do not tike to catt to bother the potice and most of the time whatever is going on has stopped
once the police get there.

Chief Ramereiz asked the residents to please cat[ anytime you see anything going on at the park.
The non-emergency number is 989-875-7505. Even if once the officer arrives the issue is not
happening, we stitt need to know what is going on.

Amber Derosia advised that they stopped using the park 2 years ago, they go to A[ma now. Amber
asked why the Hope House does not have a smalter time frame for the permit. She stated that she
is tired of tiving next to it and it needs to go.

Sarah Bouman from Community MentaI Heatth advised that they provide hetp for addiction. A tot of
the residents of the shelter have trauma from berore they came here. We must provide basic needs
first by housing them. We are not altowed to turn them away. Sarah stated we have a much better
chance of helping/heating them once they have housing.



Buffy Btock asked, Are they viotent? Who is tooking out for my kids? ls anyone going to assure me no
one witt snap? An employee from Community Mentat Heatth stated that anyone can snap at any
minute, it is not unique to hometess poputations,

Paut Capen asked, does the shetter take peopte from jait? Jake Gregory stated that they have on one
occasion. Jake atso stated that the county does not give the shetter money if they take someone
from the jait. Jake also advised that they check for sex offenders upon registration and if they are on
the tist then they are denied from staying at Hope House.

Lyte McCoon directorfrom OHS- Office of Human Services advised that money raised hetps peopte
in need, whether it be rent, staying at a hotel or a campground. We are alt working together to keep
peopte in their homes and with their famities. Homelessness is a big probtem. He added "Ptease
renew the permit".

Louise St. John advised that she visits the shetter weekty, she truty loves spending time there and
getting to know the residents. She also advises everyone to visit the shelter, hear thelr stories, and
learn howthey are tryingto better themsetves. Louise stated that she tives byAtma Co[tege and has
noisy cottege kids in her backyard and understands the disruption.

Ferris Azzam inquired, are there any out-of-state residentg at the shetter? Jake stated, no everyone
that enters is from or staying in Gratiot county in some capacity. A lot of peopte start out seeking
assistance from 8-Cap and then go to Hope House.

Former MayorJim Ketty addrsssed the Ptanning Commission and stated that he has spent 23years
on their side of the table. I hetped get Hope House here, We att had the same issues in the seventies
when lwas a police officer. I futty support the Hope House. Jake Gregory addressed the Ptanning
Commission again stating that untess we know of probtems going on, we cannot take care of them.
When we do know of a situation it is managed right away. We have had to remove peopte as wetl.
Hometess peopte have the same rights as we atl do but must foltow the rules as wet[. We must
know about it before we can hetp fix it. I have been to graduation parties at the park where there is
toud music and parents are there smoking as wett. I have heard toud music from my neighbors as
wett. I must fottow the rutes with MDHS, I don't always agree with them. Please report issues to us
as soon as possibte, caltor stop bythe office and added"we are tryingto hetp improve their tives.
We witt address what we are awar6 of ".

Chairman Doepker ctosed the pubtic hearing at 6:57 P.M.

Kurt Giles advised that the Planning Commission can act to approve, deny or conditionatty approve
the 3-year e)dension with annuaI review in house or with the ptanning commission.

D. Messer asked how many ars at the shetter now? And how many emptoyees and votunteers? Jake

stated there are fourteen residents currentty, 10 employees and votunteers usuatty number 6-7
peopte.
Messer atso asked Chief Ramereiz if the shetter puts a strain on daity operations. Chief Ramereiz
stated a[[ agencies are deating with shortages, if we are unable to take the catt, Atma Po]ice
Department or the Gratiot County Sherriff's Department woutd be catted in. Bufty Btock stated that
when the potice had been catled, they had arrived asap.



Jake Gregory advised that Hope House has their operations manuaI ontine, and it is vBry informative
and can answer a lot of questions. Jake atso stated that there was a noise comptaint made but it
was his dog barking, nothing to do with the shelter.

Sue Whitford asked if there was something brought up at the very first meeting about four different
counties or rotating services. Jake stated that they had planned to rotate between different
churches but there were not enough resources to be abte to do this, Jake atso states that this
rotationaI arrangement was never presented to the St. Louis Ptanning Commission.

Tim Btock asked if there are peopte with mentat heatth issues tiving there and are the staff
physicatty abte to restrain them untit the potice arrive. "Do they have training?" Jake advised that
they do have protocol to fouow and that they have a RAD lnstructor, and the staff have been trained
in how to respond, Chief Ramereiz stated that when they have been catted to an issue the staff has
handted it wett and has the room cteared up by the time they arrive.

chairman Dan Doepker stated "Don't be afraid to catt". Commission member Kevin Palmer stated I

do not catt either and I shoutd. Gites asked if there were any more questions or comments and
there were none.

Motion made by D. Keltey, supported by R, Echtinaw to approve the three (3) year Speciat Use
Permit for the Hope House with annual review by City staff members.

Rott Catt:
Ayes: Doepker, Gites, D. Kettey, S. Ketty, Messer, Echtinaw Patmer, Whitford
Nays: None
Motion Carried.

Gil.es advised there was no other business.

Chairman Doepker asked if therg were any other pubtic comments. There were none.
Motion made by Messer, supported by S. Ketlyto ad,iourn the meeting at 7:15 P.M. Att ayes. Motion
carried.

Dori Foster
Recording Secretary



Wednesday June 12,2024
St. Louis, Ml

A regular meeting of the St. Louis Planning Commission was catted to order by acting Chair Donna
Kettey at 5:30 P.M.

Present: Giles, D. Kettey, S. Ketty, Echtinaw, Whitford, Horvat
Absent: Doepker-excused, Palmer-excused, Messer-excused
Atso present: Jake Gregory-Hope House, Nathan Workman-Hope House, Carotyn Studtey-Hope
House, Chief Richard Ramereiz-St. Louis Po[ice Dept., MyMichigan MedicaI Center-Lori Johnson,
Catie Macha, .lenniter Nigro, Kattyn Wiles and a few others that didn't sign in.

The Ptedge of Attegiance was led by acting Chair D. Kettey.

Motion was made by Horvat, supported by Gites to approve the minutes from Aprit 10, 2024. Atl
ayes. Motion carried.

Giles advised Ptanning Commission members ot the ptan to discuss the Gratiot County Hope
House mid-year review and hear from Jake Gregory from the Hope House. Giles stated that the City
has not had any difticulties with issues being addressed by Hope House representatives whenever
the need arose. As wett as any other concerns brought up during the meeting, Jake intended to
address three topics of concern. These inctude the perception that Hope House residents were
being sent from other locations or being attracted to St. Louis because of the existence of the Hope
House, the suggestion that individuals associated with the Hope House were sometimes occupying
vacant buitdings in the St. Louis area and that there was an inordinate number of law enforcement
and/or first responder catls to the Hope House.

Jake stated the first issue was that other areas/communities were bringing people to our shetter.
Jake stated this is not true, that if you are in Gratiot County for whatever reason you are here, you

have access to the shetter. Statistics provided by Hope House representatives identify 89% of the
individuats served in the past 27 months were deemed from Gratiot County. Another 8.7% of those
residents had been in the Centrat Michigan Ptanning Body area, but outside of Gratiot County, The

CentraI Michigan Ptanning Body inctudes the counties of Montcalm, lsabella, lonia and Gratiot.
Jake stated that there are emptoyees from MyMichigan Health and other agencies present to
answer any questions about how the Hope House has hetped the peopte that they house and how
the agencies' activities intersect with Hope House. The Hope House coordinates with MyMichigan
Alma, Gratiot lntegrated Heatth Network and EightCAP. An individuat coutd be reteased from the
hospitat and have nowhere to go and the Hope House witt hetp if they are able.

Jako advised that the second issue was the suggestion that Hope House representatives were
advising residents to stay in abandoned houses or buildings. Jake stated this is not true at alt, we
woutd never recommend staying in any abandoned buitding. Once an individuat leaves the Hope
House they cannot control what they do, these peopte are adults and what they choose to do is
their business. However, if an individual is asked to leave the Hope House, they witt try to assist
them once they teave as wett. An exampte coutd be staying at a hotet for a few nights or getting

them a ride somewhere, so they are not just kicked out.



Wednesday June 12,2024
St. Louis, Ml

A regular meeting otthe St. Louis Ptanning Commission was catted to order by acting Chair Donna
Kettey at 5:30 P.M.

Present: Giles, D. Kettey, S. Ketty, Echtinaw, Whitford, Horvat
Absent: Doepker-excused, Palmer-excused, Messer-excused
Atso pr€sent: Jake Gregory-Hope House, Nathan Workman-Hope House, Carotyn Studtey-Hope
House, Chief Richard Ramereiz-St. Louis Potice Dept., MyMichigan Medical Center-Lori Johnson,
Catie Macha, Jennifer Nigro, Kattyn Wites and a few others that didn't sign in.

The Ptedge of Attegiance was led by acting Chair D. Kettey.

Motion was made by Horvat, supported by Gites to approve the minutes from Aprit 10, 2024. Att
ayes. Motion Carried.

Gites advised Ptanning Commission members of the plan to discuss the Gratiot County Hope
House mid-year review and hear from Jake Gregory from the Hope House. Gites stated that the City
has not had any difticutties with issues being addressed by Hope House representatives whenever
the need arose. As we[[ as any other concerns brought up during the meeting, Jake intended to
address three topics of concern. These include the perception that Hope House residents were
being sent trom other locations or being attracted to St. Louis because of the existence ot the Hope

House, the suggestion that individuals associated with the Hope House were sometimes occupying
vacant buitdings in the St. Louis area and that there was an inordinate number of law enforcement
and/or first responder catts to the Hope House.

Jake stated the first issue was that other areas/communities were bringing people to our shetter.
Jake stated this is not true, that if you are in Gratiot County for whatever reason you are here, you
have access to the shelter. Statistics provided by Hope House representatives identify 89% of the
individuats servod in the past 27 months were deemed from Gratiot County. Another 8.7% of those
residents had been in the Centrat Michigan Ptanning Body area, but outside of Gratiot County. The
Centrat Michigan Ptanning Body includes the Counties of Montcatm, lsabetla, lonia and Gratiot.
Jake stated that there are emptoyees from MyMichigan Heatth and other agencies present to
answer any questions about how the Hope House has hetped the peopte that they house and how
the agencies' activities intersect with Hope House. The Hope House coordinates with MyMichigan
Atma, Gratiot lntegrated Heatth Network and EightcAP. An individuat coutd be released from the
hospitat and have nowhere to go and the Hope House witt hetp if they are abte.

Jake advised that the second issue was the suggestion that Hope House representatives were
advising residents to stay in abandoned houses or buitdings. Jake stated this is not true at a[t, we
woutd never recommend staying in any abandoned buitding, Once an individuat teaves the Hope
House they cannot contro[ what they do, these peopte are adutts and what they choose to do is
their business. However, it an individuat is asked to [eave the Hope House, theywitttryto assist
them once they leave as wett. An exampte could be staying at a hotet for a few nights or getting
them a ride somewhere, so they are not iust kicked out.



Jake advised that the third issue was excessive medicat calts to the shelter. Jake stated there have
been 19 medicat catts in 27 months while 234 individuals have been served by Hope House. Jake
advised that Chief Ramereiz had the cterk put together a chart of the ca[[s for service at the Hope
House and simitar catts outside of the Hope House, Jake stated that the catls to the shelter are not
disproportionate and usua[[y resotved very quickty.

Chiet Ramereiz stated that if there are rumors heard, he investigates for verifiabte information. lf it
is something important, then he has always been abte to tatk to Jake or Nathan right away. Chief
advised that he has never had any issues with the staff. They are easy to deat with. The shetter has
strict poticies to fottow as wett. The Chief advised the ptanning commission that there were (3) three
possibte cases of peopte being brought in from other areas. Two of the peopte do not know or
remember who brought them in or where they came from. The other was reportedty from Kent
County PD but no one from the department coutd corroborate.

Kurt stated that Diandra Messer of the Ptanning Commission was unable to attend but sent an
emait to him with the fotlowing questions about Hope House:

1 . Does the potice force feel that there is a strain on their services due to the addition of the
shetter? Chief Ramereiz stated no there is no strain on the day-to-day poticing.

2. Have neighbors or community members voiced valid concerns that have or have not been
addressed? Kurt stated that no complaints have been received from Westgate area
residents that attended the October 2021 Ptanning Commission meeting since the time of
that meeting. A report of individuats that were perceived to be hometess in Orchard Hilts
subdivision was received in Fefiuary ot 2024, however, no connection to Hope House was
abte to be verified.

3. Does Hope House feet that they have the adequate staffing to meet their needs in a safe
and constructive manner? Jake stated yes, we have adequate staffing, However, there are
chattenges to maintaining staffing tevels with timited tunding. There is not enough funding to
be open 2417 as they would prefer.

Kurt asked if there were any other questions at this time. None were asked.

There was no other business to report.

Motion made by S. Ketty, supported by Whitford to adiourn the meeting at 6:23 P.M. Att ayes. Motion
carried.

Dori Foster
Recording Secretary



Wednesday Aprit 10, 2024
St. Louis, Ml

A regular meeting of the st. Louis Ptanning commission was catted to order by chairman Doepker
et 5:30 P.M.

Present: Doepker, Git6s, D, Ketley, S. Kolty, Messer, Echtinaw, Whitford, Horvat
Absent: Patmer-oxcuBed
Also Present- Kasey Zehner GGD lnc., FBrris Azzam-counciI membe]

The Ptedge ofAttegiance was led by Chairman Doepker.

Motion was made by MesseG supported by Whitford to approve the minutes from November 8,
2023. Att ayes. Motion carrled.

Kurt Giles advised the Ptanning Commission that a site ptan ,or Worthy Etectric was submitted to
add a new buitding and psrkinE area behind the business, Kurt stated they woutd be adding crushed
concrete instead of a hard surface. Thls is an existing use that is altowed in the industriat park. Kurt
stated that staff had no concerns and recommends the site ptan for approvat.

Motionwas made by D. Kgltsy, supported by Horvatto approve theworthy Etectric sitB ptan. Alt
ayes, Motion carrled.

Kurt advised that Kasey Zehner from Greater Gratiot Devetopment, lnc was here to talk ebout
updating the Master Ptan.
Kasey advised the Ptanning Commission that thEre have been three input sessions and one survey
which created five areas of priority. Th6first being Housing. Kasey mentloned thinking big, what are
St, Louis's wishes and goatsfor ths future, ls there a shonage oI housing as in other communities,
does St. Louis need more variety in housing options?
Itwas mentioned areas around St. Louis needed annexatlon due to some houses being in city timits
thon the next one being out of city timlts. This normatty wilt not happen untess utilities are needed.
Coutd renovating and restoring singte famity housing be hetpful? More apartments on second ftoors
above businesses? There could bo grants avaitable for some ot these ideas but woutd need further
investigatio n .

Chlldcere and Eerty Education are aBo an important topic. Childcare costs are extremety hlgh,
parents are chooslng to stay home more to raise their kids. wages are not high enough to attract
workers and centerc, etc. Should zoning regutations be revlewed to hetp this issue? lt is a topic of
discussion all over the county.
Community Business end Workforce Development. What can we do to bring more peopte
downtown? woutd peopte come if there were more hands-on opportunitiss to gain experience?
What are things peopte \ tould tike to see more of?
lndustry Activities and lnfrastructure is a harder area to focus on due to the timited avaitabitity ol
industriat tots in St, Louis. The industriat park is pretty much tutt, There are a few areas that are
avaitabte, but most businssses want 20+ acres, which St. Louis does not have to offer.
The tast area of discussion is Touriam/Agrotourism, EnvironmentoI Protection and Messaging. What
areas are good forthe community ol st. Lou:s, what witt bring tourism? Having more festivals, being
inctuded on the quitt trait, maybe more car shows. The Vetsicot Site is an area that coutd house



many different ideas. Maybe an energy park with solar panets to benefit the community. Maybe a
basketbatt couft, picktebatt court, watking trait, att good ideas for the city.
Kasey advisecl the Planning Commission that these were the principaI areas of cliscussion and
asked if they had any other questions at this time. None were asked.

There was no other business to report at this time.

There were no pubtic comments at this time.

Motion made by D. Keltey, supported by Messer to adjourn the meeting at 7:10 P.M. Att ayes. Motion
carried.

DoriFoster
Recording Secretary


